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,

COME "!OIlY

I
.. r~spondents Chem-Solv, Inc. ("Chern-Solv") and AUS.tin Holdings-VA, LLC

1 . , , I

("Austin Holdings"~ (collectively, the "Respondents"), by counsel, in accordance with the Court's
I I ,:'

December 6,2011 Order Rescheduling Hearing and Prehearing Deadlines, a~d file this Pretrial Brief

summarizing the dJensL that the Respondents intend to pursue at the hearilg scheduled for March

20-30,2012. BecJse tt Court is familiar with the Comp1a;nant's allegatioL and the Respondents'

defenses from priJ brlefing, the Respondents will brie~y recount the }urisdictional facts and

I I

violations alleged in the Complainant's Administrative. Complaint, Compliance Order and
•iii

Opportunity for a Hearing (the "Complaint"), and the Respondents' defenses thereto.

\:I, I
I. Summa9' of Alleged Jurisdictional Facts I ,

A Ch Is II h C I' ' II II : I . . h' I.. d' . ,. fs to em- 0 v, t e omp amant genera y a eges It IS t e "own~r an ' operator' 0 a
,I, I .

"facility" located at', 1111 and 1140 Industry Avenue, S.{ Roanoke, Virginia (collectively, the

!: I I \ I
: , ' , ,

,
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"Property"), as those terms are defined in 40 C.F.R. § 260.10. (Compl. ~ 3.•) As to Austin Holdings,
Ii I : , I ·

the Complainant also 1generally alleges that it is the "owner" of a "facility", as those terms are
I, I

defined in 40 C.F.R. § 260.10. (Compl. ~ 4.)

Th U · al: S IE' I" P . A (h 'EPA")' d h Pe nIte tates nVlronmenta rotectlOn gency t e ., mspecte t e roperty

beginning on MaJ

1

'" 15! 2007 (the "Inspection") and coll~~ted samples o~ certain materials found
" I I I

during a site visit to th~ Property on May 23, 2007 (the "Sampling Event"). (See Compl. ~~ 6-7.)
I I ' , , i I •

During the Sampling Event, the EPA took samples of rinsewater and settled solids contained in a

subgrade rinsewatl hdlding tank sometimes referred to: as the "Pit" ("R1insewater Tank No.1")

I' I " i " I,
located on a portion of the Respondents' ral property. (~ee Compl. n 1

1

4, 16.) Bas~d upon the

EPA's Inspection andl its analysis of thc samples collected during th~ Sampling Event, the

Complainant generally alleges that Chem-Solv is a "gener~tor" of "hazardols waste" as those terms

I I "\are defined in 40 C.F.R., § 260.10. (See Compl. ~ 5.) ! • '

I I , I ' I •
The Compl~ina~t claims that the analysis of the s~mple of rinsewat~rcollected by the EPA

I I, l , \ "
during the samPlinF, Event indicated that such rinsewate~ "contained 6. I mglL chloroform. (See

I 1 , ' I •

Compl. ~ 14.) Accordingly, the Complainant further claims that such rinsewater is a hazardous

waste, under 40 C.J.R. § 261.24, because it is a "solid wl~te" with a conclntration of chloroform
I, I ' I :

greater than 6.0 mg/L. (See Compi. ~ 15.) , l I i

lIi: !
The Complamant also claims that the analysis of the sample of settled solids collected by the

EPA d · h sl' II' . d' d h hi I d I'd \ . d 4-7 /Lunng t e ,amp 109 event In lcate t at suc sett e so lSi contame ) mg
II ! ' , ' I

tetrachloroethene and 15.5 mg/I. of trichloroethene. (See Compl. ~ 16.) Consequently, the

1\I' I :
Complainant furtheC\, alleges that such settled solids were "hazardous wa~tes", under :,0 C.F.R.

, I :' , I '
§261.24, because the~,,' were a "solid waste" with a concentrat,ion of tetrachloroethene greater than 0.7

, I \ I 'I ' l : •

mg/L and concentration Of triehloroethene greater than 0.5 mg/L. (See CompiI~ 17-18.)

I
I
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Comp!. ~ 19.)

Fnr the foregoing reasons, thc Complainant claims that the rinsewater and settled solids

contained in RinJr', atl,r Tank No. I at the time of the Inspection and the sa~Pling Event were "solid
. I I \

wastes" and "hazardous wastes" as such terms are defined i~ 40 C.F.R. § 260.10. (See C~mpl. ~ 21.)

I' I ' I '

Thc Complainant additionally alleges, based on its analysis of the sample Msettled solids collected
I I ' i

during the Sampling event, that the settled solids contained in Rinsewaterl Tank No. I contained a

volatile organic coLpo~nd ("YOC") concentration greater ;han 500 parts pel million by ~eight. (See
\ '

I
The Complainant also claims that Chem-Solv accumulated at least'l' 1,000 kilograms (2,200

\ I ' , I '
Ibs.) of hazardous Jasti at the Property from May 15,2007 through Februari 20, 2008. (See Compl.

~ 25.) The Respondents dispute this claim and believe that their evidence at the hearing will show

that no measuremeL oi weight was taken and that the Complainant cannot lstablish this claim by a

\!" '
preponderance of the evidence. , "

I' I ' I
II. Summary of Violations Alleged by tbe Complainant ,

I I I
ln its Com[llaint, the Complainant alleges that Chem-Solv and Austin Holdings violated

Subtitle C of the Relour~e Conservation and Recovery Act ("ReRA"), 42 U.~.C. §§ 6921-693ge, in

I \ " I
the following respects: i " :

I I • i '

A. Count I rOperating a Hazardous Waste Storage Facility Witbout a Permit or
Interim Status. ,1,

I I I

In Count 1 o£theiComplaint, the Complainant alleges that, from May 23,2007 until February

I, 2008. Respondent oined and operated a hazardous w~5te storage facili'ly without a permit or

interim status, in viol/atiJn of 40 C.F.R. Part 270 and Sectio'n 3005(a) of the kesource Co~servation
II I I I '

and Recovery Act, 4

1

2 0.s.c. § 6925(a). (See Compl. 'If 37) This conclusion is based on the
, ,

following assumptions: '
II : II

(1) Respondents stored a drum of sodium hydrosulfide at the Propeny from at
least May', 23, 2007 until February 20, 2008, when the Complainant alleges, , ,

that Respondents shipped it off-site for disposal after 273 days of storage.

: I ' \ i, , I '

I
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,

\
Co pl~inant further alleges such sodium hydrosulfide was a "hazardous
wa~tc";' under 40 C.F.R. § 261.22(b) and 23(b), because it exhibited
chAracteristics ofcorrosivity and reactivitv. (See Comp!. ~ 30.)

\ I • ,

(2) Re~pon:dents stored "hazardous waste", including the settled solids referenced
abqve, :in Rinsewater Tank No. I, from May 23, 2007 until February 20,
2008, when it shipped such settled solids off-site for disposal after storing it
on ~ite for 273 days. (Comp!. ~~ 31-32.), .

. I' I . '
(3) Responaents did not properly inspect Rinsewater Tank No.1 from May 23,

201j UTi! February 1,2008. (See Comp!. ~ 33.)

(4) Responaents have never had a permit or interim status, pursuant to 40 C.F.R., .

Part 270 and Section 3005 (a) and (e) of RCRA, 42 U.S.c. § 6925 (a) and (e).
for iib chemical distribution business located on the Property. (See Comp!. ~
34.) I ' I

I' i '. . .

(5) Respondents failed to qualify for the "less than 180 day" generator
acdlmulation exemption set forth in 40 C.F.R. § 262.34(d), with respect to
the lalleged storage of the 55 gallon drum of sodium hydrosulfide and the
settl,ed solids allegedly stored in Rinsewater Tank No. I, from May 23, 2007
until February I, 2008 by failing to satisfy the conditions for such exemption.

I .
(See Comp!. ~ 36.) , .
-I I ' i

The Respondents' evidence at the hearing in this' matter will challenge the assumptions

concerning certain jlrisJictional facts upon which Count I i~ based.
\ ! . \ '

B. Count II - Failure to ~ake Waste Determinations.

In Count II rf t~e Complaint, the Complainant clauns that Chern-Solv violated 40 C.F.R. §

262.1 I by failing to perfprm a hazardous waste determination on "solid waste" allegedly generated at
I \ . ,

Chem-Solv's chemiCal 9istribution business located on the Property. (See Comp!. ~~ 45-46.) This

I . . b d I hi" II' . ' ,conc uSlon IS ase ?n t e ,0 oWll1g assumptIOns:' "

I' I '
(I) Chem-So,lv stored and/or disposed of "hazardous wastes", including the

rinse\vater and settled solids referenced above, from May 23, 2007 until
Febrilary II, 2008, without performing a hazardous waste determination on
such :alleged "hazardous wastes" in accordance with 40 C.F.R. § 262.11. (See
Comp!. ~~ 40-42.) i 'I \ .! I

(2) Chc~-Solv treated, slored and/or disposed ~f "solid waste", including used
aerosbl ~ans. without performing a hazardous waste determination, in
accor~anJe with 40 C.F.R. § 262.11, un such alleged "solid waste". (See
Comll!. ~~ 43-44.)

, I
,
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, .

The eVidJce llresented to the Court at the hearing by the Respondents will Ch~llenge these

'I I . i
assumptions and the applicability of the regulatory requirements upon which the violations alleged in

I
1 I

Count II are based under the circumstances present here

I 1

c. Count :111 -i Failure to Have Secondary Containment for Rel':ulated Hazardous
Waste S.torage Tank. i \ 'I I '' ,

In Count lliI of,the Complaint, the Complainant cl~ims that Chem-Solv violated 140 C.F.R. §

264.193(a), (d) ant (e~, by failing to provide secondary Icontainment for ~insewater ~ank No. I,

which the comPljina~t alleges qualifies as a regulated "new tank systJm" under 40 C.F.R. §

Ii' I
264.1 93(a). (d) and (e). (See Compl. n 48-50, 52.) This claim is based on the following

i \assumptions: \

. \

(I) ~in~ewater Tank No.1 was a "new tank system" regulated under 40
1=..F.~. § 264. I 93(a), (d) and (e). (See Compl. 'IJ'IJ 48-50.) \'

I 1 '

(2) Chem-Solv did not design or install an external liner secondary
bontainment device in accordance with 40 C.F.R. § 264.193(d), from May

. ~3, 2007 until February I, 2008. (See C~mpl. 'IJ 51.) \ i

The Respan~entls will offer evidence to the Court at the hearing challenging the validity of

h . I d hi I' b'l' f hi' . I h' h C I'll' b dt ese assumptIons ani' t, e app Ica I lty 0 t e regu atory re~ulrements upon w lC aunt. IS ase

under the circumstances ilofthiscase.' :

I'
D. Count It' - Failure to Obtain Tank Assessments for Regulated, Hazardous ~Vaste

Storage Tan,.ks. .1 I '
, I " i

In Count IV of the Complaint, the Complainant claims that Chem-Solv violated 40 C.F.R. §

I
,I, I I!:

264. I 92(a) and (g) by allegedly failing to obtain a written certification of the design of Rinsewater

I \ '! I

Tank No. I in aceorllance with the requirements of 40 C.F.R. § 264. I 92(b)-(f). (See Compl. 'IJ 56-

57) Th ' I' ··b I d 1 h fi II" ;. IS CaIm IS ase upon teo owmg assumptIOns:

I I
(I) Rinsewater Tank No. I was installed at the Property after July: 14,1986. (See

Com~1. 'IJ 54.) I • \

(2) R· Ii I T k N 1 " k 1 '" . h' h . f 4'
mselwat~r an o. was a new tan system WIt m t e meanmg a

C.F.R:: §§1260.10 and 264. \92(a). (See com~\ 'IJ 55.)

. ! '
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Respondents' e~idence at the hearing will be that these assumptions are without basis in fact.
I. I I 1

E. Count IV -Failure to Conduct and Document Inspections of Regulated Hazardous
Waste Sto~ageTanks., , I 1,

I: I • , ' "

In Count \II of the Complaint, the Complainant claims that Chem-Solv violated 40 C.F.R. §
, \ I •

264.195(b) and (d), by ~lIegedly failing to inspect the aboveground portions' of Rinsewater Tank No.

t each operating dJ~. (Isee Compl. ~~ 50-60, 62.) This conclusion is based lpon the assumption that

j, I 'I

Chem-Solv did no inspect the aboveground portions of Rinsewater Tank '.No.1 on all "operating

I' \ I, •

days" occurring between May 23, 2007 and February I, 2008, in accordance with 40 C.F.R. §

264.195(b) and (d)1 (S~e Compl. ~ 61.) The evidence off~red to the cou~ by Respon~ents at the
, I I ',1"

hearing will dispute

l
this, assumption by the Complainant. .' II !

I ,
F. Count YI- Failure to Comply with Air Pollutant Emissions Standards Applicable to

Regulated Hazardous Waste Storage Tanks Under RCRA Subpart cc.
I I

In Count VI of the Complaint, the Complainant claims that Chem-Solv violated 40 C.F.R. §§

I ' ' I '
264.1 082(b) and 1084(b), by allegedly failing to control air pollutant emissions from RinsewaterI I ' , I
Tank No. I in accordance with 40 C.F.R. § 264.1 084(c) or (d). (See Compl. ~~ 64, 68-71.) This

I
, I ' ,

claim is based upon ll',he following assumptions: I :

. I 1

(I) The sample of settled solids taken from Rinsewater Tank No.1 by the
EPA during the Sampling Event indicated that such settled solids
c:ontained a VOC concentration greater than 500 parts per million. (See
Uompl.~67.) I,

(2) Jinsdwater Tank No. I was a hazardous waste storage tank subject to the
n\quirements of 40 C.F.R. Part 264, Subpart J at the time of the Sampling
8vent. (See Compl. ~65,), I '

I: \ ! '

(3) Ri,inse'.¥ater Tank No. I was not exempted from regulation under 40
g.F.R. § 264.1080 pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 264.1 060(h) or yxempt from,
t~e st~ndards in 40 C.F.R. § 264.1084-1087 pursuant to 40 ',C.P.R. §
1084(~). (See Compl. ~ 66.) " ' \ '

The RespondLt)1 evidence at the hearing in this pro~eeding will show'that the abo~e-noted
assumptions upon wJiCh Count IV is based are incorrect. :

6392/12/5800903v2 6



I
G. Count VII- Failure by Failing to Comply With Closure Requirements Applicable

to Haiardous Waste Storage Tanks. !

I ! !
In Count ViJII of the Complaint, the Complainant alleges that Chem-Solv violated 40 C.F.R. §

I \ .

264.197 by failin , to ~omply with the closure requirements applicable to 'hazardous waste storage

I I I
tanks under 40 C.F:.R. Part 264. Subparts G and H. (See Compl.,'lI 73-77,84.) This claim is based

I

upon the following assumptions:
I
i
,

(1) Rinsewater Tank No. 1 was a hazardous waste storage 'tank system that
did :not have secondary containment that met the requirements of 40
C.F.R. § 264.193(b) and (c) and had not been granted a variance pursuant

I
to 4? C.F.R. § 264.193(g). G~ee CampI. 'lI 78.) I .

! I

(2) ,Che\TI-Solv removed Rinsewater Tank No.1 from the ground on or about
Feb~uary 1,2008. (See Compl. 'lI 80.) I

(3) ~he~-solv took samples of the soil surrounding RinseJater Tank No.
but did not analyze such soil samples. (See CampI. 'lI 81.)

(4) ~he~-solv did not remove or decontaminate all wlste residues or
potentially contaminated components, soils or other materials associated
{Yith Rinsewater Tank No. I and manage them as hazardous waste
I ,

following the closure of Rinsewater Tank No.1. (See Compl. 'lI 82.)

II ',I
(5) Chem-Solv did not have a closure plan meeting the requirements

Jpecified in 40 C.FR. Part 264, Subparts G and H. (See Compl. 'lI 83.)

The evidence offerld ~y the Respondents at the hearing in this matter I will establish that the

regulatory reqUiremlnts ~pon which Count VII is based do not apply in this cintext of the underlying

facts.

III. Summary Defenses That Respondents Intend to Pursue at the Hearing

The alleged IIiOI~tions enumerated above are premised upon tive (5) I,erroneous assumptions

I I
made by the Complainarit: (I) rinsewater contained in Rinsewater Tank No!! was a "solid waste";

I ! I
(2) settled solids contained in Rinsewater Tank No. 1 were a "regulated waste"; (3) the 55 gallon

drum of sodium hYdlsUIf.de identified by the EPA contained a "solid waste"; 1,(4) empty aerosol cans

I I . : i
allegedly observed in a solid waste receptacle had not been characterized hy Chem-Solv; and (5),

i
I ,
! ;

6392/12/5800903 v2 7



samples of rinsewater and settled solids collected by the EPA properly charactorized such materials.
Iii,

The evidence presente? by the parties at the hearing will demonstrate that ~ll five (5) of the above-

listed assumptions lare iincorrect.' ,
I

I
Generally, RCRA establishes certain management requirements. for materials that are

! I
"hazardous wastes.' In order to be a RCRA regulated "hazardous waste"', a material must (I) meet

\ i
the definition of a 'I'solid waste" and (2) meet onc of the definitions of "haza.rdous waste". With the

. 1 I I

exception of Count II Mthe Complaint, all of the alleged violations asserted in the Complaint are

I 1 '!
contingent upon carh of the materials in question - rinsewater, settled solidS, sodium hydrosulfide

and aerosol cans - fall i,;g within the scope of the definitions of "hazardous Jaste" under RCRA. For
I ! ,!.

example, if the rinsowaier contained in Rinsewater Tank No. I is not "solid ~aste," then Chem-Solv
! • I

is not liable for the violations alleged in Counts 111 through VlI of the Complaint. Likewise, if the

rinsewater contained in kinsewater Tank No. I and the sodium hYdrOSuifide1identified by EPA were

. I I '
not "solid wastes", and the settled solids contained in Rinsewater Tank No. I were subject to an

.. I

1 !

exemption from regulation as a "hazardous waste", Chem-Solv is not liable for the violation alleged

I I •. I .

in Count J oftheComplaint.,

I I, . •

Moreover, if, as the evidence presented by the Respondents at the hlaring will demonstrate,

the samples of the ~inse!water and settled solids contained in Rinsewater Tljnk No. I taken by the

EPA did not properl~ re~resent and, therefore, characterize such materials oJ if the analysis of such

samples were not prlperly performed, then the Complainant cannot establish
l
by a preponderance of

I 1 ; I .
the evidence that such materials meet the definitions of "hazardous waste" under 40 C.F.R. §§ 260.10
Ii· ! ..

and 261.3. Thus, if the EPA's flawed samples do not properly characterize the rinsewater and settled

solids contained in Jinse~ater Tank No. I, and its analysis 'of such samples ~oes not esta~lish by a

I, i ! I

preponderance of the evidence that such materials meet the defmitions of "hazardous waste", then
. I,

! ' ,

639211215800903v2



Chem-Solv IS not liable for the violations alleged In Counts

Complaint.

I, III, IV, V,
I

\

VI and VII of the

A. The Rinsewater in Rinsewater Tank No.1 Was Not a "Solid Waste."

Ii'
1. DefnitTn of "Solid Waste"

In 40 C.F.R. § 260.10, the term "solid waste" is defined as "solid waste defined in [40 C.F.R.

§261.2]." The tei "lolid waste" is further defined in 40 C.F.R. §26I.2la)(I) as "any discarded

material that is nJ exbluded by § 261.4(a) or that is not excluded by v~riance granted under §§

260.30 and 260.31 1." The term "discarded material" is defined in 40 C.F.iR. §26I.2(a)(2) as "any
I ', I

material which is: (i) abandoned, as explained in paragraph (b) of this section; (ii) recycled as
i . I

explained in paragrPh iCC) of this section; or (iii) considered inherently wyte-like, as explained in

paragraph (d) of this section Notably, th~ Complainant has not alleged that the rinsewater

I , !
contained in Rinsewater Tank No.1 was "inherently waste like" as that term is defined in 40 C.F.R.

I ' '
§261.2(d) or that such ~aterials were "recycled" within the meaning of 40 C.~.R. §261.2(c).

Under 40 c.IF.R.

I

, §261.2(b), materials are "discarded material" and, tJerefore, "solid waste" if

Ii!
they are "abandoned" by being: (l) disposed of; (2) burned or incinerated; (3) accumulated, stored or

\ 'i I
treated (but not recycled) before or in lieu of being abandoned by being disposed of burned or

I . I
incinerated. The evidenye presented to the Court by the Respondents at the hearing will demonstrate

,,,."h, ",",w",,, 'r'+'d "R'",,_'" T", No I -"" "wild -,,,Jiwi<h', 'I< m",'" of

40 C.F.R. § 260.10\ or '40 C.F.R. § 261.2 because such materials had not been "abandoned" or

\ 'I
"recycled" as those teons are defined in 40 C.F .R. § 261 .2(b) and 40 C.F.R. § 261.2(c), respectively.

2 D,J If" U J W " I,'. eJlnlllon C? nQzaruOUs rraste ' , I

I I I '
The term "hazardous waste" is defined in 40 C.F.R. § 260.10 as "hazardous waste as delined

in § 261.3 of this cJaPte~." 40 C.F.R. § 261.3 provides, in pertinent part, t~at a "solid waste" is a

\ i "
; I

"hazardous waste" ifi' "( I) it is not excluded from regulation as a hazardous waste under § 261.4(b);

6392/12/5800903v2 9



and (2) it meets any of the following criteria: (i) it exhibits any of the characteristics of hazardous
\ I I .

waste identified in\SUb~art C of[40 C.F.R. § 261] ... (ii) it is listed in Subpart 0 of [40 C.F.R. § 261]
I I

and has not been excluded from the lists in Subpart 0 of [40 C.F.R. § 261J under §§ 260.20 and

260.22 of this chapler. .!, In addition to the § 261.4(b) exclusion cited above, (here are exemptions that

I· . h . I Ih h d b' ... F I I 'f . IImlt t e requirements t at azar ous wastes are su ~ect to. or examp e, even I a materia meets

the definition of "Jolid
l

waste", if it is exempted from regulation as a "haJardous waste" under 40

C.F.R. 261.4(c), thln it lis not subject to the requirements set for in RCRA alllgedlY violated.
1 . I

3. sunjma;y of Respondents' Anticipated Evidence Concern'ing Chem-So/v's Drum
Rinsmg loperatlOn. \

The eVident p~esented by the Respondents at the hearing will show that, in May 2007. as

part of its business bf r~paCkagingchemical products from bulk storage cont1ainers such as tanks and

\ " I
tanker trucks into dt:ums', Chem-Solv rinsed off the exterior surface of drums after they had been used

I 1 ,I,
in order to remove dust, dirt, and debris that had accumulated on them during outdoor storage of the

emptv drums. Res~ondents' evidence further will show that the rinsewatt used to rinse off the
. I I

exterior of such dLms' was collected in Rinsewater Tank No. I. Respondents' evidence will
I I ,I,

establish the rinsewater',was then pumped up and out of the Rinsewater Trk No. I into a 6,000

gallon above grouL ~toragc tank ("Rinsewater Tank 1\0. 2") through a particulate filter.
Ii 'I

Respondents' evidence will be that such particulate filter was used in order to protect the pump by

preventing it from tco~ing clogged. Respondents' evidence also will show that, thereafter, the

. Id !. h . f dd" I d . hid 'b d brmsewater was reuse to rinse t e extenor 0 a lhona rums m t e same manner escn e a ove.

Ch S I 'd 1..1
. d' d d' I I d' h hi,. f .em- 0 v s rum rlmsl~.g operation was eSlgne an Imp emente Wit tie mtent 0 conservIng

1 ,

water and limiting its consumption of tap waler and further reducing Chem-Solv' s operating costs.

The eVidenJ of)ered by the Respondents at the hearing will furthe1r show that.' primarily

d ·· hi hi. . d' R' 'T k N d R
1

. k N 2unng wmter mont s. t e rmsewater contame In Insewater an o. I an msewater Tan o.

d .1 d
t

. . h . f I I "d' b d I. fi d'"was use as a raw mgre lent m t e creation 0 a g yeo an water ase antl- reeze con ItlonIng

i I

6392112/5800903v2 10



Are Exempted .from

assuming for the sake of
1

I m~t the definitions of a

agent product caJl~d FreezeCon. Chem-Solv sold FreezeCon to its coal "industry customers, who
: I

applied it directly to coal during loading into rail cars in preparation for transportation in cold
1 I

weather. The Respondents' evidence will establish the ongoing production of Chem-Solv's

FreezeCon producl USi~g rinsewater doring winter months for several yea:s and after the tank was

I ,
removed in early 2~08. '[

1 'Because the Respondents' evidence will establish that some of the, rinsewater contained in

I 1 I
Rinsewater Tank 10. l[ was osed as a raw ingredient in a marketable produit, FreezeCon. or reused

to rinse the exterior su'rface of additional drums containing Chem-Solv's chemical products, such

rinsewater waS nol a "discarded material" within the meaning of 40 ~.F.R. §261.2(b). The

Respondents' eVidLce 'Iat the hearing further will show that the rinsewater ~ontained in Rinsewater
Iii,

Tank No.1 did not become a "discarded material" and, thus, it was not a "s~lid waste" until Chem-
I I 1

Solv made an electibn or determination to dispose of it and pumped it from the tanks, and not before

• iI ,

such point in time. For,these reasons, the Complainant will not establish by a preponderance of the
I I

evidence that the rinsewater was a "solid waste" at the time of the Sampling Event. Accordingly, for

I 1 "I
the reasons set fortn above, and those further discussed below, the Complainant will not be able to

I I 1

establish by a preponderance of the evidence that the Respondents are liable f~r the violations alleged

I '
in Counts I, 1II, IV, I' VI' and VII of the Complaint.

B. The Settlled Solids Contained in Rinsewater Tank No.1 Were Not a Regulated

Waste. \ '

1. The Settied Solids Contained in Rillsewater Tank No.
Regullaliun Under 40 CF.R. § 261.4(c).

The Respon~ent~' evidence additionally will establish that,

argument that the slettleld solids contained 10 Rinsewater Tank No.

i,
"discarded material"\ ani a "solid waste", such settled solids are exemptrd from regulation as

"hazardous waste" under the Manufacturing Process Unit CMPU") exemption found in 40 C.F.R.

I \ •

, I
,
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§261.4(c). The Respondents' evidence specifically will show that, from a regulatory perspective, the
I I I .

settled solids cont~ined in Rinsewater Tank No, I are subject to the exemption set forth in 40 C.F.R.

§261.4(c), which plovi~es, in pertinent part, that:!

A j Id h' h . d . d I. I"azar ous waste w IC IS generate In a pro uct or raw matena storage
tank ... or in a manufacturing process unit or an associated non-waste­
tre~tment-manufacturing unit, is not subject to regulation under parts 262
through 265, 268, 270, 271 and 124 of this chapter or to the notification
req~irements of section 3010 of RCRA until it exits the unit in which it was
genbratcd, unless the unit is a surface impoundment, or unless the hazardous
wa~te remains in the unit more than 90 days after the unit ceases to be
ope~ated for manufacturing, or for storage or transportation of product or raw
matbrials. .

I I

40 c'F.R. §261.4(c). :
\ II ,

As provided in 40 c'F.R. §261.4(c), materials generated in a product or raw material storage

tank, a manufactJing i process unit, or an associated non-waste-treat~ent-manufacturing unit

generally are not Lbjelct to regulation as "hazardous waste" under RC~, including the waste

determination requlm~nts set forth in 40 C.F.R. §262. II, the permitting rJquirements found in 40
I I . I

c'F.R. Part 270, and ;he tank requirements contained in 40 C.F.R. §265, Subpart J. Stated

dilferently, the exelptiion set forth in 40 C,F.R. 261.4(c) expressly apPlies to every regulatory

requirement refereJed ~y the Complainant regarding the s~ttled solids, inclUlding 40 C.F.R Part 270

(Count 1- operatin~ a ~egulated Facility Without a Permit), 40 c'F.R. § 26i.11 (Count 11- Failure
I I

to Make a Waste Determination), 40 C.F.R. §264.193 (Count III - Failure to Have Secondary

\ . I
Containment), 40 c'F,R: §264.1 n (Count IV - Failure to Obtain a Tank Assessment), 40 C.F.R.

I I I
§264.195 (Count V -\ Failure to Conduct Inspections), 40 C.F.R. §264.195 (.count VI - Failure to

! . . i

Comply with Subpart CC Emissions Standards for Tank), and 40 c'F.R. §264,197 (Count VII ~

I i
Failure to Propcrly Close a Regulated Tank).

I I

When the MPU cxemption took effect in J980, the EPA expressed its intent behind the

exemption was to Jgula~e potentially "hamrdous waste" contained in tankJ that are integral to a
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I

manufacturing process, such as Rinsewater Tank No. I. See Hazardous Wa,ste Management System,
I . I

45 F.R. 72,024 (Oct. 30, 1980) (Codified at 40 C.F.R. § 261.4). The evidence offered by the

Respondents at thj he~ring will demonstrate that the EPA did not intend )0 apply the containment
I . I

requirements under R~RA to "hazardous waste" contained in tanks !hat are integral to the

~ . \ I '1 h . d ~ '. d' I \'1 h . thmanulactunng process untl suc waste IS remove lor Isposa or unll suc wastes eXit e
I I I

manufacturing process. I Furthennore, such evidence additionally will establish that the EPA intended

to provide relief to Iman!ufacturers in cases where the point of "hazardous w~ste" generation could be
I

the tank itself. , \

As appl ied in th~ context of Rinsewater Tank No.1, the Respondents: evidence at the hearing

I
will show that the settled solids contained in Rinsewater Tank No. I did not become a regulated

. I

: i

waste until they were physically removed from the tank for the purpose of disposal, and not before

I I \
that point in time. As such, the Respondents' evidence will show that, at the time of Sampling Event,

the settled solids cohtained in Rinsewater Tank No. I were not a rcgulated Jaste under RCRA. For

this reason too, chlm-~olv is not liable for the violations alleged in couJts I through Vll of the

Complaint.

2. Resppndenls I Evidence Will Show that Chem-Solv Properly Characterized the Settled
Solids Contained in Rinsewaler Tank No. I. I

I i I

Moreover, contrary to the Complainant's claim In Count II that Chem-Solv failed to
\ i I

characterize the settled 'solids contained in Rinsewater Tank No. I, the e~idence offered by the

Respondents at the Lari'ng will establish that Chem-Solv had, in fact, previLslY characterized the

\ " I
settled solids. Specifically, the Respondents expect that their evidence will show that samples of the

settled solids contaiLd in Rinsewater Tank No. I collected and analyzed ~y Chem-Solv in May

2006, indicated that LCh settled solids did not meet the regulatory definitionl of "hazardous waste"
I I I

under 40 C.F.R. § 260.10 and 40 C.F.R. § 261.3. The Respondents' evidenc~ at the hearing forther

will be that, thereaftJ C~em-solvmanaged the settled solids contained in Ri~sewater Tank No.1 in
I I
I I

639211215800903v2 13



accordance with its knowledge of the results of the analysis of the samples of settled solids it

I I i
, I

collected in May 2006. Based on the Chem-Solv's generator knowledge of the particulars of its

I I i
drum rinsing process and the results of the analysis of the samples of settled solids it collected in

May 2006, there las ~o basis to expect chlorofonn, tetrachloroethene or: trichloroethene to be in
II I

Rinsewater Tank No. 1.\ I

For these rlaso~s, the evidence that will be offered to the Court ~y the Respondents will
I ' ,

demonstrate that the vi61ations alleged in Counts I through VII of the Com~laint are without merit,

I i I
and Chem-Solv is not liable therefor. I

II I
C. The D~um of Sodium Hydrosulfide Observed by the EPA, During the Sampling

Event Was rot "Solid Waste." '[

As set forth above, in Count I of the Complaint, the Complainant alleges that it observed a 55

I'
gallon drum of sodium hydrosulfide during the Sampling Event and that such drum of sodium

I I i

hydrosulfide was sHipped off site as a hazardous waste on February 20, 2008. (Sec Compl. ~ 30.)
I ' I

The Respondents' etd+ce will show that, even though sodium hYdrOSUlfid1 was shipped off site as

a hazardous waste on February 20, 2008, the sodium hydrosulfide observed, by the EPA during the
I ' '

Sampling Event was n~t a "solid waste" or a "hazardous waste" on that 1ate. This is the case,

because, as the Res~onJents' evidence will establish, the drum of sodium h;drosulfide observed by
\ !; Ii

the EPA during the Sampling Event was one of several partial drums of sodium hydrosulfide product
I ' I .

that were in Chem-Solv's inventory at the Property at that time. The other partial drums of sodium
I : I

hydrosulfide in Che~-S~lv'S inventory at the time of the Sampling Event wer~ not noted by the EPA.
I i I

The Respondents,' evidence will demonstrate that the sodium hydrosulfide in its inventory at

the time of the saJpliJg Event was useable product. Thereafter, Ch"m-~olv combined several

partially full drums bf s~dium hydrosulfide, including the drum observed Jy the EPA during the
I \ . i

Sampling Event intOtthre.e drums and contacted one of its customers to dete~mine if it wanted this
i i

product. This customer, Respondents' evidence will show, committed to purchasing two such drums

I I
I
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of sodium hydrosJlfide, but they would not take delivery until the fall of 2008. The Respondents'

evidence additioJIlY ~ill indicate that, after Chem-Solv detennined that isome, but not all, of its
I I

I
inventory of sodiu~ hydrosulfide would be sold to this customer later in 2008, it decided to dispose

I ' i

of the remainder of the product, rather than continue to store it. This decIsIon by Chem-Solv to

dispose of the reJainJer of its inventory of sodium hydrosulfide, accOrdling to the Respondents'

I ' I

evidence, was based upon its perception that the EPA had specific conce~s about such material,

despite the fact thJ

1

it ~as a marketable product at that time.

Consequently, the evidence offered to the Court during the hearing will be that Chem-Solv

shipped the unneedL drum of sodium hydrosulfide off site as hazardous wasi,te on February 20, 2008,

the same month thit it~ customer advised that it only wanted a portion of!, such product in Chem-

I " '
i i

Solv's inventory. Such evidence will further show that, in October 2008, Chem-Solv shipped the

\ ' i
desired portion of Chern-Solv's inventorv of sodium hydrosulfide to its customer as planned.

I ;' i

In summaryl, the evidence at the hearing will establish that the drum of sodium hvdrosulfide
\ ' ! .

observed by the EPA during the Sampling Event was not a "solid waste" at that time. Thus, for these

I ' i

reasons, in additionl to those set forth above, Chem-Solv is not liable for the VIolatIons alleged In

Count I of the Complaint.

I I

D. Empty Aerosol Cans Observed During the Inspection and the Sampling Event Had
Been Pr~perlyCharacterized. I

As set forth lbove, the Complainant claims in Count II of the compl~int that Chem-Solv did

not properly charaJeriz~ aerosol cans that the EPA allegedly observed in ~,SOlid waste receptacle

during the samPlingIIEv~nt. (See Compl. ~~ 43-44.) The evidence presented ;,to the Court during the
, I
, ,

hearing will dcmonstrated]at this claim is without merit. In fact, as the Respondents' evidence will

show. Chem-Solv hL previously detennincd that such aerosol cans, when e~ptied of their contents

using standard meaJs. such as depressing the spray nozzle unti I no additio~al material comes out,

met the definition lf "~mpty" as that term is defmed in 40 C.F.R. § i61.7. Moreover, the
, ,

I I
I
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i
,

I

Respondents' eVidlenc~ will be that Chem-Solv determined that such aerosol cans satisfied each

I :
relevant clement of the definition of "empty" under 40 C.F.R. § 261.7. The Respondents' evidence

will include the fLt that Chem-Solv personnel had been instructed to ~nlY deposit completely

I . i
"empty" aerosol cans into solid waste receptacles located on the Property and that any and all non-

empty aerosol caJ were to be used until they were, in fact, "empty" or: if an aerosol can were

detennined to be Jope~able before they were empty, such personnel were ;'nstructed to return it for
I i I .

credit to the vendorl fro~. which it had been purchased. i
, I

For these reasons, the Respondents' evidence at the hearing will indicate that Chem-Solv

'I' :
made a waste determin~tion concerning the aerosol cans observed by the EPA during the Sampling

Event. Thus, the c:om~lainant will not be able to prove by a prepondera~ce of the evidence that

Chem-Solv is liable for. the violations alleged in Count II of the Complaint concerning the aerosol

. . h' I : d' Icans at Issue In t IS procee mg. I
I

E. samPIJ of Rinsewater and Settled SolidS Collected by :the EPA During the
Samplirig Event Do Not Properly Characterize these Materials.

I I

Assuming for the sake of argument that the rinsewater and settled solids contained in

Rinsewater Tank ~Io. '] met the definitions of "discarded materials" a;,d "solid wastes", the
, I

Complainant cannotl pror by a preponderance of the evidence that such matrrials met the definition

of "hazardous wastei', b~cause the Complainant's evidence as well as the Respondents' evidence will
I I i

show that the samples collected by the EPA during the Sampling Event and the EPA's analytical

resulls do not mJt thie EPA's own standards for sampling and ana,yLs. According1y, the
i

Respondents expect that the evidence offered to the Court during the hearin'g will indicate that the
, I

,

analytical results upon which the violations alleged in Counts I through VII of the Complaint are

based are not reliabJ or valid. Specifically, the Respondents' evidence at the 'hearing will be that the

data upon which the \co~Plainant' s conclusion that the rinsewater and the setlled solids contained in

Rinsewater Tank No. 1 is based were flawed in the following respects: (1) they were not

I I
, '
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rep~"e''';"o 0"j, o'!;m"o W,," "~.m' goeo..oJ .ed ,hipped oft ,1>0 10' ""PO'"" (2) >hoy WO~
collected using sampling protocols and methodology that is wholly inconsistent with established

EPA procedures; lnd ':(3) the EPA failed to incorporate sufficient quali)y control to ensure the
I I

reliability of its analytical results.

The eVidJce offered by the Respondents at the hearing in this proceeding will include

certain regulations lpro~ulgated by the EPA, certain guidance documents p~blished by the EPA and

I ', "

certain guidance authored by other professional organizations, such as th~ American Society for
I I I

Testing and Materials ("ASTM") providing detailed sampling requirement~, which regulations and
I • I

guidance were pro~ulgated and published to ensure that potentially hazardous wastes are sampled
, ,

and analyzed in J reliable and defensible manner. The Respondents', evidence further will

demonstrate that thi methodology used by the EPA did not conform to such!regUlatOry requirements

or such published \gUidanCe documents and. thus, the samples collected by the EPA generated

analytical results that are not representative of the waste streams at issue in this matter.

Consequently, the lide'nce presented to the Court at the hearing will ShOW" that the Complainant's
, ,

conclusion that the Jinsewater and the settled solids met the defmition of "haiardous waste" under 40

C.F.R. §§ 260.10 aJd 261.3 cannot reasonably be based upon EPA's flaweJ analytical results. For

the same reasons, JCh ;1awed analytical results do not provide the Complainant a defensible basis

. I Ie i d'for thIS regu atory en,orcement procee mg.

The rinsewaLr a'nd settled solids contained in Rinsewater Tank No. cannot be considered

"hazardous waste" Jnles:s they are proven by the Complainant to meet the definition of "hazardous
I ' ,

waste" set forth in 40 C.F.R. §~ 260.10 and 261.3. Thus, due to these fatal flaws in the sampling and

analytical protocols Ld ~ethodOlogyused by the EPA, the Complainant will'not be able to prove by

I \
a preponderance of the evidence that the rinsewater and the settled solids were "hazardous wastes."

!

6392/12/5800903v2 17



f<'~ ~
."~~ -....

,,~ ';$ rn
'''Y' ~ Cig,- - rn
~~ N -~Y'

~ "'"." rn""--.;r.;£ - 0_c> .,
';? 0

'""r;ri '"Y,:.

Therefore, Ifor ~hese reasons, in addition to those set forth above, t~e evidence presented to

the Court by the parties at the hearing will demonstrate that Chem-Solv is not liable for the violations
I . !

alleged in Counts I through VII of the Complaint, all of which are based upon the EPA's unreliable
I . i

and invalid analytical r~sults. i

Iii
The ResPoidents hereby reserve their right to pursue any and all defenses that are supported

by the evidence offered by the parties at the hearing in this matter.

I i

Dated: (Y\~ ''is'1 "LOlL. Chem-Solv, Inc. andAustin~oldings-VA, L.L.c.
,

I

By ~&t!~~-
Charles L. Williamsi(VSB No. 1145)
1. Scott Sexton (VSB No. 29284)
Maxwell H. Wiegard (VSB No. 68787)
GENTRY LOCKE RAKES & MOORE
10 Franklin Road, SE, Suite 800, Roanoke, VA 24011

iP. U. Box 40013. Roanoke, VA 24022-0013
Telephone: 540-983-9300

,

Facsimile: 540-983-9400
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